ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 17, 2015

9:01 a.m
MEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair

Senator Bill W el echowski
MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins
Senator Lesil MQiire

COWM TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Comm ssi oner - Departnment of Corrections
Ronal d Tayl or

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Board of Gane
Ki p Fanni ng
Teresa Sager Al baugh

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion
Mark Fi sh
WIlliam MCord

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics, Public Menbers
Denni s "Ski p" Cook
Herman G \al ker, Jr

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 17, 2015



No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER

RONALD TAYLOR, Conm ssi oner - el ect

Depart ment of Corrections

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appoi nt ee.

DENNI S " SKI P* COCK, Appoi ntee

Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics, Public Menber
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appoi nt ee.

HERVAN G WALKER, JR., Appointee

Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

Publ i ¢ Menber

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appoi nt ee.

W LLI AM MCCORD, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Hai nes, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appoi nt ee.

KI P FANNI NG, Appoi nt ee
Board of Gane

Yakut at, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appoi nt ee.

TERESA SAGER ALBAUGH, Appoi ntee

Board of Gane

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appoi nt ee.

M KE TI NKER, Menber

Al aska Wl dlife Conservation Associ ation

North Pol e, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of the two Board of Gane
candi dat es.

AL BARRETTE, Menber

Al aska Qut door Counci

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of the two Board of Gane
candi dat es.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 17, 2015



TERRY VERBEC, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of Conm ssioner-elect
Ronal d Tayl or.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 08 AM

CHAIR BILL STO.TZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Wel echowski, Coghill, and Chair Stoltze.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

9:02: 01 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced that there would be a nunber of
confirmation hearings. The first would be for comm ssioner of
the Departnent of Corrections.

Commi ssi oner - Departnent of Corrections

9:02: 28 AM

RONALD TAYLOR, Conmi ssioner-designee, Departnent of Corrections,
stated that this nomnation is an incredible and unique
opportunity to serve the people of Alaska at this tine of budget
reductions and |looking at ways to inprove the overall
effectiveness of the departnment. He noted that for the past
several years the departnent has been working hard with the
| egislature and the crimnal justice conmmunity, overall, to
reduce recidivism and | ook for ways to make inprovenents to the
system He said the budget will be a challenge. He opined that
the departnent's mssion is to ensure that they are doing
everything possible to help people be successful when they re-
enter society.

9:04: 11 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked for M. Taylor's vision.

COWM SSI ONER TAYLOR said his focus is on re-entry managenent
|l ow recidivismrates, and conprehensi ve progranmm ng.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked M. Taylor for offering to take the
position. He said he would work with M. Taylor on recidivism
prevention. He noted the problem of the large pre-tria
popul ati on.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 17, 2015



9:06: 36 AM

COM SSI ONER  TAYLOR replied that 40 percent of the prison
popul ation is not sentenced and it causes mmjor problens. The
departnment is working with other crimnal justice partners to
see if that population needs to be in custody or could be
el ectronically nonitored or held in half-way houses.

9:08: 14 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked whether risk assessnent is done on the
pre-trial popul ation.

COWM SSI ONER TAYLOR said no, but it will be | ooked at.
SENATOR COGHI LL asked if it has been recommended by the court.

COMM SSI ONER TAYLOR answered that it could be recommended by the
court or Corrections staff could assess the risk and mke
reconmendati ons.

SENATOR COGHI LL spoke of half-way house issues in Fairbanks. He
asked if hal f-way houses can be i nproved.

COWMM SSI ONER TAYLOR said yes, in ternms of quality assessnent and
the introduction of service dogs.

9:09: 58 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE expl ained that hal f-way houses differ greatly from
pri sons.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted the problem of drugs.

9:10: 23 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI conmended Conm ssioner Taylor. He asked
about the reasons for closing down sone of the conmunity jails.

COM SSI ONER TAYLOR explained that they are not advocating
closing community jails, but are term nating sone contracts with
them such as the mninumfacility in Palmer which will becone a
hal f -way house.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI replied that he stands corrected.

COWM SSI ONER  TAYLOR explained closing challenges, including
staffing.

9:13: 54 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 17, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE asked about the norale within Corrections.

COM SSI ONER  TAYLOR answered that communi cation is very
inmportant. He said they have reached out to the enployees to
give them access to the Commissioner's Ofice and will continue
to work to inprove norale. He said he views inproving norale a
top consi derati on.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that officer safety is a concern of his. He
said he appreciates the steps M. Taylor has already taken.

9:16: 42 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that M. Taylor's nanme will be forwarded
to the joint session for confirmation.

9:17: 23 AM
At ease.

Select Coonmttee on Legislative Ethics

9:17: 50 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE brought the neeting back to order and turned to
the nom nations for the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics.
He asked M. Cook to tell the commttee what notivates himto be
i nvol ved in regul ating ethical behavior.

9:18: 20 AM

DENNI S "SKI P* COOK, Appointee, Select Commttee on Legislative
Et hics, Public Menber, testified as an appointee. He explained
his background as an attorney and wth state and city
government. He said he has been on the Ethics Commttee since
1998 and enjoys the work, especially training. He said the
Conmittee is in transition with a new director and he is willing
to continue to serve to provide continuity.

9:21: 02 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL expressed appreciation for M. Cook's work and
his willingness to continue to serve.

CHAI R STOLTZE said he does not have any issues with M. Cook's
nom nati on and he appreciates his service.

CHAI R STOLTZE recogni zed M. Wl ker and asked him to provide a
brief biography and why he wants to continue serving on the
Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics.

9:23:25 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 17, 2015



HERVAN G WALKER, JR, Appoi nt ee, Sel ect Committee on
Legislative Ethics, Public Menber, testified as an appointee. He
provi ded his background and work as a lawer. He said he has
been a nmenber of the Legislative Ethics Commttee since 2002. He
wi shed to stay on to share his institutional nenory.

CHAIR STOLTZE wondered who forwards the appointnments to the
Et hics Committee.

9:26: 19 AM

MR. WALKER replied that he received a phone call from the State
Suprene Court Justice, Dana Fabe, requesting that he serve on
the Ethics Conmittee.

CHAI R STCOLTZE voi ced appreciation for his service.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted his past work with M. Wlker when he
served on the Ethics Conmittee and the clarity he provided.

9: 28: 09 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced that his nanme will be forwarded to the
joint session for confirmation.

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

CHAIR STOLTZE welconmed M. MCord and asked him to tell the
comm ttee about hinself, his time in Alaska and his interest in
serving on the Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion.

9:29: 37 AM

WLLIAM MCCORD, Appointee, Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion
(APOC), testified as an appointee. He noted that he has only
been in Alaska since My comng from Washington State. He
explained that he is a Libertarian and a retired teacher. He
provi ded his educational background and rel evant experience in a
variety of organizations.

9:32:47 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked what he views as his role.

MR. MCCORD answered that he has an interest in fair and
obj ective evaluations, and is not necessarily a party advocate.

SENATOR COGHILL said the conmmttee is looking for fair
objectivity.

9:34:11 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 17, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE announced that M. MCord's nanme will be forwarded
to the joint session for confirmation. He thanked M. MCord.

Board of Gane

CHAIR STOLTZE welconed M. Fanning and asked him to tell the
commttee about hinself and his interest in serving on the Board
of Gane.

9:36: 27 AM

KIP FANNING  Appointee, Board of Gane, testified as an
appoi ntee. He shared his background in the hunting and fishing
business. He said it would be an honor to serve on the board.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted neeting his father in the past. He asked
what M. Fanning does for a living.

9:38:23 AM

MR. FANNI NG answered that his famly owns a |odge in Yakutat and
he serves as a guide. He spoke of the balance needed in
protecting resources.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted M. Fanning had involvenent in the gane
i ndustry, but does not now.

MR. FANNI NG answered correct; he is no longer a registered gane
gui de.

9:39:37 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked for M. Fanning's opinion on guiding
regul ati ons and gane nanagenent.

MR. FANNI NG shared how guiding was handled in the past. He said
he woul d need nore infornmation to discuss the current situation.

9:41:16 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL brought up concerns about predator control
regardi ng noose and fish populations. He asked if M. Fanning
has know edge of that issue.

MR. FANNI NG answered that he is going to have to |earn about it,
but he is not against predator control.

CHAI R STOLTZE said M. Fanning should not be enbarrassed about

not know ng about the guide concessions. He opined that having
an open mnd is an asset.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 17, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL noted he does not have all the answers for his
guestions. He di scussed noose popul ati on control controversies.

9:44: 27 AM

MR. FANNI NG said he does not have information about that, but is
willing to study the issue and try to cone up with the best
answers.

SENATOR COGHI LL appreci ated that.

9:46: 30 AM

TERESA SAGER ALBAUGH, Appointee, Board of Ganme, testified as an
appoi ntee. She shared her background as a person who was raised
in a hunting and fishing famly and who now |ives off the grid.
She shared her enploynment history. She said she has devoted
volunteer tinme to efforts that protect and enhance hunting,
fishing, and trapping and the public's right to enjoy outdoor
experiences. She noted she has served two terns on the Board of
Gane and she hoped to continue to contribute to people who val ue
wildlife.

9:48: 54 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked Ms. Sager Al baugh for serving on the
Board. He asked about regulations regarding antler-less hunting
in a unit near Fairbanks.

M5. SAGER ALBAUGH agreed that the issue is contentious and
conplex. She explained that the antler-less noose hunts are
provi ded and adopted by the Board because they prevent the npose
popul ation from overgrazing the range and causing a popul ation
crash. The goal is to build a sustainable nobose popul ation. She
said she understands concerns people have with the regul ation,
but she has voted in favor of the hunts when the science is
right. She said she voted against the re-authorization in Unit
20-A when the npose population dropped below the population
objective. She pointed out that advisory commttees have veto
power over antler-less hunts and the Board cannot override it.

9:53:31 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked about the growi ng bear population in the
Interior and a problemw th predation.

M5. SAGER ALBAUGH answered that bear predation is significant in
a nunber of areas in the state. She comented that when it
becones necessary to reduce predators, the Board has the
responsibility to act and to | ook at managenent options.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 17, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL appreciated Ms. Sager Al baugh's know edge.

9: 56: 38 AM

M KE TINKER, Menber, Alaska WIdlife Conservation Association,
testified in favor of the two Board of Gane candidates. He
voi ced appreciation for M. Sager Al baugh's service. He opined
that M. Fanning will do an excellent job on the Board and has
t he background to ask questions on the issues.

9:59: 01 AM

AL BARRETTE, Menber, Al aska Qutdoor Council, testified in favor
of the two Board of Gane candidates. He echoed the previous
speaker's comments.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that both nanmes will be forwarded to the
joint session for confirmation. He noted his affiliation wth
t he Al aska Qutdoor Council.

10: 03: 11 AM

TERRY VERBEC, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Departnment of Public Safety, testified in favor of appointee
Ronald Tayl or. He said they have had a great working
relationship and he |ooks forward to working with him and his
staff.

10: 04: 16 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that all nanmes will be forwarded to a joint
session for further consideration. He rem nded nenbers that
signing the reports regarding appointnments to boards and
conm ssions in no way reflects individual nenbers' approval or
di sapproval of the appointees, and that the nom nations are
nmerely forwarded to the full legislature for confirmation or
rejection.

10: 05: 00 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:05 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 17, 2015



